
AGENDAS & STAFF REPORTS ONLINE: https://rossvalleyfire.org/about/board/board-meetings
Email: sstettler@rossvalleyfire.org 

ROSS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA

Wednesday, December 11, 2024
     San Anselmo Town Council Chambers, at 525 San Anselmo Ave. San Anselmo, 

CA 94960, and via Zoom.

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88099825475
Or Telephone: +1 669 900 6833 | Webinar ID: 880 9982 5475

For callers *9 to raise your hand *6 to mute/unmute 

Remote Access to Meeting Information: RVFD Board of Directors offers remote access to meetings via 
Zoom or through other internet or electronic access.  Participation in the meeting via Zoom or other 
electronic access is provided as a courtesy to the public where no members of the Fire Board are 
attending the meeting via teleconference as defined in Government Code section 54953. When no 
members of the Fire Board are attending the meeting via teleconference if a technical error or outage 
occurs on the Zoom or electronic feed, the Fire Board may continue the meeting without waiting for Zoom 
or electronic access to return.  Meetings are held in public at the San Anselmo Town Council Chambers, 
at 525 San Anselmo Ave. San Anselmo, CA 94960 unless otherwise noted in a specific agenda.

6:30 pm RVFD Board Meeting

1. Call to order – 6:30 pm. 

2. Announce Adjournment to Closed Session:

Convene in Closed Session:
a) Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code §54957.6)

i) Agency Designated Representative: Dan Mahoney/Dave Donery 
Employee Organization: Ross Valley Fire Chief Officers Association and 
Ross Valley Fire Fighter Association 
Regarding: Labor Negotiations

3. Announce Action in Closed Session, if any.

4. Chief Report – Verbal update by Fire Chief Mahoney

https://rossvalleyfire.org/about/board/board-meetings
mailto:sstettler@rossvalleyfire.org
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88099825475


5. Consent Agenda:  Items on the consent agenda may be removed and discussed separately. 
Discussion may take place at the end of the agenda. Otherwise, all items may be 
approved with one action.

a) Acknowledge check register issued during November

Item 5a – Check Register

b) Receive call report and out of jurisdiction report for November

Item 5b – Call & Out of Jurisdiction Reports 

c) Receive current budget report

Item 5c – Budget Report

d) Approve Minutes of the November 13, 2024, Board meeting

Item 5d – Minutes November 13, 2024

e) The Board Authorizes the Recommended Changes to the “Educational Incentive
Pay” (Exhibit D), part of the Ross Valley Fire Fighters and Ross Valley Fire Chief 
Officers Memorandum of Understanding.

Item 5e – Staff Report for Educational Incentive Pay
Item 5e – Attachment #1 - CalPERS Engagement Letter
Item 5e – Attachment #2 - CalPERS Audit Report
Item 5e – Attachment #3 - Signed Side Letter (Exhibit D)
Item 5e – Attachment #4 - 2019-2022 MOU’s
Item 5e – Attachment #5 - 2022-2025 MOU’s

6. Update on Town of Ross Station 18 One-Year Delay Closure Letter  – Fire Chief 
Mahoney

Item 6 – Staff Report for Update Town of Ross Delay Closure Letter
Item 6 – Attachment #1 – RVPA Board Packet for November 21, 2024
Item 6 – Attachment #2 – RVPA Board Packet for December 5, 2024

7. Update on Department Unassigned Reserve Account – Fire Chief Mahoney

Item 7 – Staff Report for Unassigned Reserve Account 

https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Item%205a%20-%20Check%20Register%20November%202024.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Item%205b%20-%20Call%20Out%20November%202024.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Item%205c%20-%20Budget%20Report%20November%202024.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Item%205d%20-%20Minutes%20November%2013,%202024.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Item%205e%20-%20Cal%20PERS%20Educational%20Incentive%20-%20Staff%20Report.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Item%205e%20-%20Attachment%201%20-%20Cal%20PERS%20Audit%20Engagement%20Letter.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Item%205e%20-%20Attachment%202%20-%20Cal%20PERS%20Educational%20Incentive%20Pay%20Review%20for%20RVFD.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Item%205e%20-%20Attachment%203%20-%20Side%20Letter%20to%20MOU_Education%20Incentive_2024-11-13%20(Signed).pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Item%205e%20-%20Attachment%204%20-%202019-2022%20Combined%20MOU's%20FF%20and%20BC.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Item%205e%20-%20Attachment%205%20-%202022-2025%20-%20Combined%20MOU's%20FF%20and%20BC.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Staff%20Report%20-%20Fire%20Station%2018%20Closure%20Letter%20Update%202%20(FINAL).pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Attachment%201%20-%20RVPA%20Special%20Board%20Meeting%20packet%20NOV%2021%202024.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Attachment%202%20-%20RVPA%20Board%20Meeting%20Packet%20DEC%205%202024.pdf
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50501/Staff%20Report%20-%20Department%20Reserve%20Update%20(FINAL).pdf


8. Board requests for future agenda items, questions, and comments to staff, staff
miscellaneous items.

9. Open time for public expression. The public is welcome to address the Board at this time
on matters, not on the agenda. However, please be advised that pursuant to Government
Code Section 54954.2, the Board is not permitted to take action on any matter not on the
agenda unless it determines that an emergency exists or that the need to take action arose
following the posting of the agenda.

10. Adjourn

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, January 10, 2025, in person at the San Anselmo 
Town Council Chambers, at 525 San Anselmo Ave. San Anselmo, CA 94960, and via zoom. 

______________________________________________
s/Samantha Stettler, Administrative Assistant
This agenda was posted in accordance with #54954.2 and #54954.3 of the Government Code. Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Board 
regarding any item on this agenda after the distribution of the original packet will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the Fire Station 
located at 777 San Anselmo Ave., San Anselmo. AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS AND ASSISTIVE LISTENING DEVICES MAY BE REQUESTED BY CALLING 
(415) 258-4686 AT LEAST 72 HOURS IN ADVANCE. COPIES OF DOCUMENTS ARE AVAILABLE IN ACCESSIBLE FORMATS UPON REQUEST.

Samantha Stettler



12/3/2024 9:06:47 PM Page 1 of 7

Check Report
Ross Valley Fire, CA By Check Number

Date Range: 11/01/2024 - 11/30/2024

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: AP-Accounts Payable

01433 AT&T Corp 11/07/2024 240292,689.74Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

242849568 Invoice 11/26/2024 11.26.2024 - WIRELESS - 09.11.24-10.10.2 2,689.740.00

TELEPHONE 2,689.7411.26.2024 - WIRELESS - 09.11.201.14.61705.00

01487 Brady Industries NorCal 11/07/2024 24030649.99Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

9325866 Invoice 10/09/2024 10.09.2024 - JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 649.990.00

JANITORIAL MAINTENAN 649.9910.09.2024 - JANITORIAL SUPPLI01.14.62206.00

01272 Diesel Direct West Inc 11/07/2024 240311,166.57Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

86167244 Invoice 10/31/2024 10.31.2024 - GASOLINE UNL - 150.1 GAL 767.480.00

FUEL 767.4810.31.2024 - GASOLINE UNL - 101.25.62988.00

86167245 Invoice 10/31/2024 10.31.2024 - ULSD CLEAR - 78.2 GAL 399.090.00

FUEL 399.0910.31.2024 - ULSD CLEAR - 78.201.25.62988.00

01017 Fairfax Lumber 11/07/2024 2403222.54Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

289487 Invoice 11/02/2024 11.02.2024 - CABLE TIES 22.540.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE 22.5411.02.2024 - CABLE TIES01.14.61500.21

01234 Napa Auto Parts 11/07/2024 24033139.55Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

900143 Invoice 10/31/2024 10.31.2024 - 2010 FORD EXPLORER - WIN 139.550.00

FUEL 97.5710.31.2024 - 2010 FORD EXPLO01.25.62988.00

FLEET PARTS 41.9810.31.2024 - 2010 FORD EXPLO01.25.62989.00

01472 PACE Supply Corp. 11/07/2024 2403439,508.08Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

019691636 Invoice 10/30/2024 10.30.2024 - FIRE HYDRANTS 39,508.080.00

HYDRANTS 39,508.0810.30.2024 - FIRE HYDRANTS01.10.63140.00

01509 Vestis Group, Inc. (f/k/a ARAMARK UNIFORM & 11/07/2024 24035122.64Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

5080524431 Invoice 11/04/2024 11.04.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICES 40.880.00

JANITORIAL MAINTENAN 40.8811.04.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICE01.14.62206.00

5080524432 Invoice 11/04/2024 11.04.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICES 40.880.00

JANITORIAL MAINTENAN 40.8811.04.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICE01.14.62206.00

5080525330 Invoice 11/05/2024 11.05.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICES 40.880.00

JANITORIAL MAINTENAN 40.8811.05.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICE01.14.62206.00

01209 Air Exchange Inc 11/15/2024 24036421.13Regular 0.00

Item 5a 
Page 1 of 7

Page 1 of 230



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2024 - 11/30/2024

12/3/2024 9:06:47 PM Page 2 of 7

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

91613211 Invoice 10/17/2024 10.17.2024 - TRANSMITTER 421.130.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE  421.1310.17.2024 - TRANSMITTER01.14.61500.00

01326 AMAZON.COM SERVICES LLC 11/15/2024 24037980.99Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

14Q1-QVKG-D41 Invoice 11/07/2024 11.07.2024 - 60 GAL COMPRESSOR 980.990.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE  980.9911.07.2024 - 60 GAL COMPRESS01.14.61500.00

01059 AT&T Mobility 11/15/2024 240381,080.38Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

287301083016X1 Invoice 11/02/2024 11.02.2024 - WIRELESS - 10.03.24-11.02.2 1,080.380.00

TELEPHONE 1,080.3811.02.2024 - WIRELESS - 10.03.201.14.61705.00

01390 Badawi & Associates 11/15/2024 240391,598.50Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

1749 Invoice 11/12/2024 11.12.2024 - 2024 AUDIT 1,598.500.00

AUDIT & BOOKEEPING SE 1,598.5011.12.2024 - 2024 AUDIT01.05.61103.00

01272 Diesel Direct West Inc 11/15/2024 240401,577.31Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

86181639 Invoice 11/07/2024 11.07.2024 - GASOLINE UNL - 150.3 GAL 776.640.00

FUEL 776.6411.07.2024 - GASOLINE UNL - 101.25.62988.00

86181640 Invoice 11/07/2024 11.07.2024 - ULSD CLEAR - 155.7 GAL 800.670.00

FUEL 800.6711.07.2024 - ULSD CLEAR - 155.01.25.62988.00

01017 Fairfax Lumber 11/15/2024 24041216.76Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

288079 Invoice 09/28/2024 09.28.2024 - LUMBER 172.480.00

TRAINING AND EDUCATIO 172.4809.28.2024 - LUMBER01.10.61000.00

289686 Invoice 11/07/2024 11.07.2024 - SPRAY ADHESIVE, PAINT BRU 34.480.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE  34.4811.07.2024 - SPRAY ADHESIVE, P01.14.61500.19

289842 Invoice 11/12/2024 11.12.2024 - NYLON WALL BD 9.800.00

GENERAL DEPARTMENT S 9.8011.12.2024 - NYLON WALL BD01.05.62200.00

01447 HRTM Consulting 11/15/2024 24042360.00Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

0007785 Invoice 11/12/2024 11.12.2024 - TELESTAFF SOLUTION CONS 360.000.00

COMPUTER SOFTWARE/S 360.0011.12.2024 - TELESTAFF SOLUTI01.05.61121.00

01089 Life-Assist Inc 11/15/2024 240431,144.39Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

1525847 Invoice 11/05/2024 11.05.2024 - EMERGENCY THORACENTESI 1,144.390.00

PARAMEDIC RESPONSE S 1,144.3911.05.2024 - EMERGENCY THOR01.10.62204.00

01452 Nicholas Hurn 11/15/2024 24044390.00Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INV0007588 Invoice 11/10/2024 11.10.2024 - REIMB - CSFT COMPANY OFF 390.000.00

TRAINING AND EDUCATIO 390.0011.10.2024 - REIMB - CSFT COM01.10.61000.00

01506 Wells Fargo Financial Leasing, INC 11/15/2024 24045360.52Regular 0.00

Item 5a 
Page 2 of 7

Page 2 of 230



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2024 - 11/30/2024

12/3/2024 9:06:47 PM Page 3 of 7

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

5032080439 Invoice 11/09/2024 11.09.2024 - KYOCERA COPIER LEASE 360.520.00

OTHER CONTRACT SERVI 360.5211.09.2024 - KYOCERA COPIER L01.05.61105.00

01326 AMAZON.COM SERVICES LLC 11/21/2024 24046124.90Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

1G4C-FGWD-VXP Invoice 11/17/2024 11.17.2024 - AIR PRESSURE REGULATOR 40.880.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE  40.8811.17.2024 - AIR PRESSURE REG01.14.61500.21

1L4P-HDV4-D9QJ Invoice 11/20/2024 11.20.2024 - D BATTERIES 45.840.00

GENERAL DEPARTMENT S 45.8411.20.2024 - D BATTERIES01.05.62200.00

1YCK-XYM4-67N9 Invoice 11/18/2024 11.18.2024 - COMPRESSOR OIL 38.180.00

GENERAL DEPARTMENT S 38.1811.18.2024 - COMPRESSOR OIL01.05.62200.00

01026 AT&T Calnet 11/21/2024 24047793.96Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

575-11102024 Invoice 11/10/2024 11.10.2024 - WIRELESS - 10.10.24-11.09.2 793.960.00

TELEPHONE 793.9611.10.2024 - WIRELESS - 10.10.201.14.61705.00

01017 Fairfax Lumber 11/21/2024 2404826.33Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

282508 Invoice 05/22/2024 05.22.2024 - SOCKET ADAPTERS/LAG SCR 18.500.00

GENERAL DEPARTMENT S 18.5005.22.2024 - SOCKET ADAPTERS01.05.62200.00

290014 Invoice 11/15/2024 11.15.2024 - GALVANIZED HARDWARE 7.830.00

GENERAL DEPARTMENT S 7.8311.15.2024 - GALVANIZED HARD01.05.62200.00

01050 Golden State Emergency Veh Svc 11/21/2024 240541,024.40Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

WI003123 Invoice 11/14/2024 11.14.2024 - 2020 ENFORCER - FOAM SYS 1,024.400.00

FLEET MAINTENANCE/RE 1,024.4011.14.2024 - 2020 ENFORCER - F01.25.61600.00

01105 Lexipol LLC 11/21/2024 240558,464.65Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INVLEX11241580 Invoice 10/01/2024 10.01.2024 - ANNUAL FIRE POLICY MANU 8,464.650.00

OTHER CONTRACT SERVI 8,464.6510.01.2024 - ANNUAL FIRE POLI01.05.61105.00

01037 Marin Municipal Water District 11/21/2024 240561,707.20Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

087-11122024 Invoice 11/12/2024 087 - 777 SAN ANSELMO AVE - 09.10.24-1 906.900.00

WATER 906.90087 - 777 SAN ANSELMO AVE - 001.14.61703.00

135-11072024 Invoice 11/07/2024 135 - 14-18 PARK RD - 09.05.24-11.04.24 222.230.00

WATER 222.23135 - 14-18 PARK RD - 09.05.24-01.14.61703.00

256-11132024 Invoice 11/13/2024 256 - 150 BUTTERFIELD RD - 09.11.24-11. 51.750.00

WATER 51.75256 - 150 BUTTERFIELD RD - 09.01.14.61703.00

263-11072024 Invoice 11/07/2024 263 - 14-18 PARK RD - 09.05.24-11.04.24 51.750.00

WATER 51.75263 - 14-18 PARK RD - 09.05.24-01.14.61703.00

354-11132024 Invoice 11/13/2024 354 - 150 BUTTERFIELD RD - 09.11.24-11. 422.820.00

WATER 422.82354 - 150 BUTTERFIELD RD - 09.01.14.61703.00

868-11122024 Invoice 11/12/2024 868 - 777 SAN ANSELMO AVE - 09.10.24-1 51.750.00

WATER 51.75868 - 777 SAN ANSELMO AVE - 001.14.61703.00

01093 Martin & Harris 11/21/2024 24057170.00Regular 0.00

Item 5a 
Page 3 of 7

Page 3 of 230



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2024 - 11/30/2024

12/3/2024 9:06:47 PM Page 4 of 7

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

S53748 Invoice 11/11/2024 11.11.2024 - DISHWASHER REPAIR 170.000.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE  170.0011.11.2024 - DISHWASHER REPA01.14.61500.20

01484 Permanente Medical Group, Inc. 11/21/2024 24058889.00Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INV0007619 Invoice 11/12/2024 11.12.2024 - OHSS ACCT #320900249037 889.000.00

HIRING EXPENSES 889.0011.12.2024 - OHSS ACCT #320901.05.61129.00

01098 Verizon Wireless 11/21/2024 24059841.85Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

9977732841 Invoice 11/01/2024 11.01.2024 - WIRELESS - 10.02.24-11.01.2 841.850.00

TELEPHONE 841.8511.01.2024 - WIRELESS - 10.02.201.14.61705.00

01509 Vestis Group, Inc. (f/k/a ARAMARK UNIFORM & 11/21/2024 24060119.46Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

5080531754 Invoice 11/18/2024 11.18.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICES 31.730.00

JANITORIAL MAINTENAN 31.7311.18.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICE01.14.62206.00

5080531755 Invoice 11/18/2024 11.18.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICES 31.730.00

JANITORIAL MAINTENAN 31.7311.18.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICE01.14.62206.00

5080532596 Invoice 11/19/2024 11.19.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICES 56.000.00

JANITORIAL MAINTENAN 56.0011.19.2024 - LAUNDRY SERVICE01.14.62206.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount
Payment

CountPayment Type

Bank Code AP Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

27

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

27 0.00

Payment

66,590.84

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

66,590.84

Payable
Count

43

0

0

0

0

43

Item 5a 
Page 4 of 7

Page 4 of 230



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2024 - 11/30/2024

12/3/2024 9:06:47 PM Page 5 of 7

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: PY-Payroll Payable

01013 AFLAC Business Services 11/05/2024 115204,144.65Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INV0007560 Invoice 11/15/2024 AFLAC 4,144.650.00

AFLAC P/R DEDUCTION 4,144.65AFLAC01.00.20271.00

01004 CAPF 11/05/2024 11521486.75Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INV0007563 Invoice 11/15/2024 DISABILITY INSURANCE 472.000.00

DISABILITY INSURANCE W 472.00DISABILITY INSURANCE01.00.20275.00

INV0007564 Invoice 11/15/2024 DISABILITY INSURANCE 14.750.00

DISABILITY INSURANCE W 14.75DISABILITY INSURANCE01.00.20275.00

01161 Nationwide Retirement Solutions 11/05/2024 115222,217.00Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INV0007566 Invoice 11/15/2024 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT 2,217.000.00

DEFERRED COMP. W/ NR 2,217.00NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT01.00.20277.00

01069 Ross Valley Firefighters Association 11/05/2024 115233,315.00Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INV0007577 Invoice 11/15/2024 UNION DUES 3,315.000.00

UNION DUES WITHHELD 3,315.00UNION DUES01.00.20289.00

01013 AFLAC Business Services 11/21/2024 115294,144.65Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INV0007594 Invoice 11/29/2024 AFLAC 4,144.650.00

AFLAC P/R DEDUCTION 4,144.65AFLAC01.00.20271.00

01004 CAPF 11/21/2024 11530472.00Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INV0007597 Invoice 11/29/2024 DISABILITY INSURANCE 472.000.00

DISABILITY INSURANCE W 472.00DISABILITY INSURANCE01.00.20275.00

01161 Nationwide Retirement Solutions 11/21/2024 115312,217.00Regular 0.00

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INV0007599 Invoice 11/29/2024 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT 2,217.000.00

DEFERRED COMP. W/ NR 2,217.00NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT01.00.20277.00

01069 Ross Valley Firefighters Association 11/21/2024 115323,315.00Regular 0.00

Item 5a 
Page 5 of 7

Page 5 of 230



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2024 - 11/30/2024

12/3/2024 9:06:47 PM Page 6 of 7

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Account Number Account Name Item Description Distribution Amount

Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

INV0007610 Invoice 11/29/2024 UNION DUES 3,315.000.00

UNION DUES WITHHELD 3,315.00UNION DUES01.00.20289.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount
Payment

CountPayment Type

Bank Code PY Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

8

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

8 0.00

Payment

20,312.05

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

20,312.05

Payable
Count

9

0

0

0

0

9

Item 5a 
Page 6 of 7

Page 6 of 230



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2024 - 11/30/2024

Page 7 of 712/3/2024 9:06:47 PM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment 

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

35

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

35 0.00

86,902.89

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

86,902.89

52

0

0

0

0

52

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

98 POOLED PAYROLL 20,312.0511/2024

99 POOLED CASH 66,590.8411/2024

86,902.89

Item 5a 
Page 7 of 7

Page 7 of 230



San Anselmo, CA
This report was generated on 12/4/2024 9:49:08 AM

Ross Valley Fire Dept

Breakdown by Major Incident Types for Date Range

MAJOR INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS % of TOTAL
Fires 2 1.09%

Rescue & Emergency Medical Service 80 43.72%

Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 9 4.92%

Service Call 27 14.75%

Good Intent Call 34 18.58%

False Alarm & False Call 21 11.48%

Severe Weather & Natural Disaster 10 5.46%

TOTAL 183 100%

Zone(s): All Zones | Start Date: 11/01/2024 | End Date: 11/30/2024

Only REVIEWED and/or LOCKED IMPORTED incidents are included.  Summary results for a major incident type are 
not displayed if the count is zero. emergencyreporting.com

Doc Id: 553
Page # 1 of 2

Item 5b 
Page 1 of 4

Page 8 of 230



Detailed Breakdown by Incident Type 

INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS % of TOTAL
111 - Building fire 1 0.55%
113 - Cooking fire, confined to container 1 0.55%
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 77 42.08%
322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 1 0.55%
323 - Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 1 0.55%
324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 1 0.55%
412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 1 0.55%
424 - Carbon monoxide incident 2 1.09%
440 - Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, other 2 1.09%
444 - Power line down 2 1.09%
445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 1 0.55%
463 - Vehicle accident, general cleanup 1 0.55%
500 - Service Call, other 1 0.55%
520 - Water problem, other 2 1.09%
522 - Water or steam leak 2 1.09%
550 - Public service assistance, other 3 1.64%
551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 3 1.64%
553 - Public service 10 5.46%
554 - Assist invalid 6 3.28%
600 - Good intent call, other 1 0.55%
611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 17 9.29%
622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 9 4.92%
651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 6 3.28%
652 - Steam, vapor, fog or dust thought to be smoke 1 0.55%
700 - False alarm or false call, other 1 0.55%
733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 3 1.64%
735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 2 1.09%
736 - CO detector activation due to malfunction 1 0.55%
743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 6 3.28%
744 - Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 2 1.09%
745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 5 2.73%
746 - Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 1 0.55%
800 - Severe weather or natural disaster, other 2 1.09%
813 - Wind storm, tornado/hurricane assessment 8 4.37%

TOTAL INCIDENTS: 183 100%

Only REVIEWED and/or LOCKED IMPORTED incidents are included.  Summary results for a major incident type are 
not displayed if the count is zero. emergencyreporting.com

Doc Id: 553
Page # 2 of 2

Item 5b 
Page 2 of 4

Page 9 of 230



San Anselmo, CA
This report was generated on 12/4/2024 9:49:45 AM

Ross Valley Fire Dept

Incident Type Count per Station for Date Range
Start Date: 11/01/2024 | End Date: 11/30/2024

INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS

Station: 18 - STATION 18 - Ross 
113 - Cooking fire, confined to container 1

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 14

463 - Vehicle accident, general cleanup 1

520 - Water problem, other 1

551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 1

553 - Public service 1

554 - Assist invalid 1

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 1

622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 2

651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 1

733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 1

735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 1

744 - Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 1

# Incidents for 18 - Station 18 : 28

Station: 19 - STATION 19 - San Anselmo
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 24

424 - Carbon monoxide incident 2

440 - Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, other 2

444 - Power line down 1

445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 1

500 - Service Call, other 1

550 - Public service assistance, other 2

553 - Public service 4

554 - Assist invalid 1

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 6

622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 1

651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 1

743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 3

744 - Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 1

746 - Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 1

800 - Severe weather or natural disaster, other 1

Only REVIEWED incidents included.
emergencyreporting.com
Doc Id: 857
Page # 1 of 2

Item 5b 
Page 3 of 4

Page 10 of 230



INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS
813 - Wind storm, tornado/hurricane assessment 3

# Incidents for 19 - Station 19: 56

Station: 20 - STATION 20 - Sleepy Hollow
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 8

323 - Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 1

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 1

520 - Water problem, other 1

553 - Public service 3

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 6

622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 3

651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 1

700 - False alarm or false call, other 1

733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 1

743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 2

813 - Wind storm, tornado/hurricane assessment 1

# Incidents for 20 - Station 20: 29

Station: 21 - STATION 21 - Fairfax
111 - Building fire 1

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 31

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 1

412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 1

444 - Power line down 1

522 - Water or steam leak 2

550 - Public service assistance, other 1

551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 2

553 - Public service 2

554 - Assist invalid 4

600 - Good intent call, other 1

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 4

622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 3

651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 3

652 - Steam, vapor, fog or dust thought to be smoke 1

733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 1

735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 1

736 - CO detector activation due to malfunction 1

743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 3

800 - Severe weather or natural disaster, other 1

813 - Wind storm, tornado/hurricane assessment 4

# Incidents for 21 - Station 21: 70

Only REVIEWED incidents included.
emergencyreporting.com
Doc Id: 857
Page # 2 of 2

Item 5b 
Page 4 of 4

Page 11 of 230



12/3/2024 9:06:00 PM Page 1 of 2

Budget Report
Ross Valley Fire, CA Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2024-2025 Period Ending: 11/30/2024

Fiscal
Ac vity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Ac vitySubCategory

Current 
Total Budget

Original 
Total Budget

Percent
Remaining

Fund: 01 - GENERAL FUND

Revenue

475 - MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS 5,557,230.291,111,446.1713,337,352.00 13,337,352.00 -7,780,121.71 58.33%

495 - OUTSIDE / MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 1,038,457.29105,518.201,570,120.00 1,570,120.00 -531,662.71 33.86%

6,595,687.581,216,964.3714,907,472.00 14,907,472.00 -8,311,784.42Revenue Total: 55.76%

Expense

600 - SALARIES AND WAGES 3,055,948.22603,485.987,239,271.00 7,239,271.00 4,183,322.78 57.79%

601 - RETIREMENT 1,947,507.3990,539.212,831,208.00 2,831,208.00 883,700.61 31.21%

602 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,264,311.37139,476.552,591,377.00 2,591,377.00 1,327,065.63 51.21%

610 - TRAINING 15,872.42390.0048,260.00 48,260.00 32,387.58 67.11%

611 - OUTSIDE SERVICES 213,451.433,941.66938,414.00 938,414.00 724,962.57 77.25%

613 - PUBLICATION / DUES 2,597.560.0010,162.00 10,162.00 7,564.44 74.44%

614 - MAINTENANCE -76.800.0023,787.00 23,787.00 23,863.80 100.32%

615 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE 10,142.541,248.8978,500.00 78,500.00 68,357.46 87.08%

616 - VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 36,081.451,024.40124,115.00 124,115.00 88,033.55 70.93%

617 - UTILITIES 48,406.027,113.13168,503.00 168,503.00 120,096.98 71.27%

620 - OFFICE SUPPLIES 732.080.006,215.00 6,215.00 5,482.92 88.22%

622 - DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 59,293.071,488.14135,595.00 135,595.00 76,301.93 56.27%

625 - FURNISHINGS 0.000.008,487.00 8,487.00 8,487.00 100.00%

629 - MISCELLANEOUS 22,579.731,577.31118,760.00 118,760.00 96,180.27 80.99%

630 - EQUIPMENT 1,569.890.0053,404.00 53,404.00 51,834.11 97.06%

631 - CAPITAL OUTLAY 50,804.560.00155,787.00 155,787.00 104,982.44 67.39%

644 - MERA BOND PAYMENT 74,199.000.000.00 0.00 -74,199.00 0.00%

670 - TRANSFERS OUT 0.000.00376,626.00 376,626.00 376,626.00 100.00%

6,803,419.93850,285.2714,908,471.00 14,908,471.00 8,105,051.07Expense Total: 54.37%

-207,732.35366,679.10-999.00 -999.00 -206,733.35Fund: 01 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): 20,694.03%

Fund: 15 - VEHICLE FUND

Revenue

519 - TRANSFERS IN 0.000.00-376,626.00 -376,626.00 376,626.00 100.00%

0.000.00-376,626.00 -376,626.00 376,626.00Revenue Total: 100.00%

Expense

631 - CAPITAL OUTLAY -3,900.000.00340,411.00 340,411.00 344,311.00 101.15%

640 - PRINCIPAL 161,252.590.00161,252.59 161,252.59 0.00 0.00%

641 - INTEREST 7,864.630.007,864.63 7,864.63 0.00 0.00%

165,217.220.00509,528.22 509,528.22 344,311.00Expense Total: 67.57%

-165,217.220.00-886,154.22 -886,154.22 720,937.00Fund: 15 - VEHICLE FUND Surplus (Deficit): 81.36%

Report Surplus (Deficit): 366,679.10 -372,949.57-887,153.22 -887,153.22 514,203.65 57.96%

Item 5c 
Page 1 of 7

Page 12 of 230



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2024-2025 Period Ending: 11/30/2024

12/3/2024 9:06:00 PM Page 2 of 2

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Ac vity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Ac vity
Current 

Total Budget
Original 

Total Budget

01 - GENERAL FUND -207,732.35366,679.10-999.00 -999.00 -206,733.35

15 - VEHICLE FUND -165,217.220.00-886,154.22 -886,154.22 720,937.00

Report Surplus (Deficit): 366,679.10 -372,949.57-887,153.22 -887,153.22 514,203.65

Item 5c 
Page 2 of 7

Page 13 of 230



12/3/2024 9:05:42 PM Page 1 of 5

Budget Report
Ross Valley Fire, CA Account Summary

For Fiscal: 2024-2025 Period Ending: 11/30/2024

Fiscal
Ac vity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current 

Total Budget
Period

Ac vity
Original 

Total Budget

Fund: 01 - GENERAL FUND

Revenue

FAIRFAX 2,729,988.00 1,137,495.00 -1,592,493.00 58.33 %227,499.0001.00.47501.00 2,729,988.00

ROSS 2,738,189.00 1,140,912.18 -1,597,276.82 58.33 %228,182.5001.00.47502.00 2,738,189.00

SAN ANSELMO 4,748,772.00 1,978,655.16 -2,770,116.84 58.33 %395,731.0801.00.47503.00 4,748,772.00

SLEEPY HOLLOW 1,499,736.00 624,890.00 -874,846.00 58.33 %124,978.0001.00.47504.00 1,499,736.00

PRIOR AUTHORITY RETIREE HEALTH 80,000.00 33,333.35 -46,666.65 58.33 %6,666.6701.00.47507.00 80,000.00

PRIOR AUTHORITY RETIREMENT 1,540,667.00 641,944.60 -898,722.40 58.33 %128,388.9201.00.47510.00 1,540,667.00

COUNTY OF MARIN 266,875.00 266,875.00 0.00 0.00 %0.0001.00.49501.00 266,875.00

RVPA REIMBURSEMENT MEDIC PR 317,511.00 158,755.32 -158,755.68 50.00 %0.0001.00.49504.00 317,511.00

RVPA RENTAL 8,360.00 17,137.84 8,777.84 205.00 %0.0001.00.49506.00 8,360.00

LAIF INTEREST 25,000.00 8,054.98 -16,945.02 67.78 %0.0001.00.49507.00 25,000.00

RVPA AGENCY REIMBURSEMENT 47,290.00 47,290.00 0.00 0.00 %0.0001.00.49509.00 47,290.00

PLAN CHECKING FEES 285,000.00 158,354.56 -126,645.44 44.44 %30,437.7701.00.49510.00 285,000.00

RE-SALE INSPECTION FEES 50,000.00 0.00 -50,000.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.49511.00 50,000.00

MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 10,000.00 763.40 -9,236.60 92.37 %0.0001.00.49512.00 10,000.00

WORKERS COMP REIMBURSEMENT 0.00 148,961.86 148,961.86 0.00 %41,404.0101.00.49513.00 0.00

DISASTER COORDINATOR REIMB. 96,740.00 0.00 -96,740.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.49517.00 96,740.00

APPARATUS REPLACEMENT 376,626.00 156,927.05 -219,698.95 58.33 %31,385.4101.00.49523.00 376,626.00

TECHNOLOGY FEES 26,718.00 12,737.28 -13,980.72 52.33 %2,291.0101.00.49524.00 26,718.00

STATION MAINT REVENUE #18 15,000.00 0.00 -15,000.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.49526.18 15,000.00

STATION MAINT REVENUE #19 15,000.00 0.00 -15,000.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.49526.19 15,000.00

STATION MAINT REVENUE #20 15,000.00 0.00 -15,000.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.49526.20 15,000.00

STATION MAINT REVENUE #21 15,000.00 0.00 -15,000.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.49526.21 15,000.00

MWPA LOCAL FUNDS 0.00 62,600.00 62,600.00 0.00 %0.0001.00.49528.00 0.00

Revenue Total: 6,595,687.581,216,964.3714,907,472.00 14,907,472.00 -8,311,784.42 55.76%

Expense

REGULAR SALARIES 5,698,118.00 2,005,985.47 3,692,132.53 64.80 %391,919.4601.00.60000.00 5,698,118.00

TEMPORARY HIRE 17,389.00 0.00 17,389.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.60010.00 17,389.00

MINIMUM STAFFING 831,694.00 869,465.03 -37,771.03 -4.54 %175,347.4001.00.60020.00 831,694.00

HOURLY OVERTIME 106,448.00 21,294.05 85,153.95 80.00 %2,870.4701.00.60021.00 106,448.00

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL OT 24,113.00 19,702.13 4,410.87 18.29 %2,482.5301.00.60024.00 24,113.00

OT TRAINING 80,576.00 7,302.88 73,273.12 90.94 %2,895.6701.00.60026.00 80,576.00

HOLIDAY 247,176.00 90,954.05 156,221.95 63.20 %18,287.3601.00.60027.00 247,176.00

PARAMEDIC TRAINING OVERTIME 37,177.00 0.00 37,177.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.60028.00 37,177.00

FLSA O/T 121,432.00 37,644.61 83,787.39 69.00 %8,583.0901.00.60029.00 121,432.00

S/L BUY BACK 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.60030.00 4,000.00

RETIRED S/L COMPENSATION 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.60035.00 50,000.00

EXECUTIVE OFFICER 3,600.00 1,500.00 2,100.00 58.33 %300.0001.00.60039.00 3,600.00

BOARD MEMBER STIPEND 8,000.00 2,100.00 5,900.00 73.75 %800.0001.00.60040.00 8,000.00

RETIREMENT 2,831,208.00 1,947,507.39 883,700.61 31.21 %90,539.2101.00.60100.00 2,831,208.00

CAFETERIA HEALTH PLAN 1,085,000.00 412,386.90 672,613.10 61.99 %81,420.5301.00.60200.00 1,085,000.00

RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS MATCH 43,641.00 18,814.25 24,826.75 56.89 %3,655.3401.00.60210.00 43,641.00

WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSUR 548,561.00 546,538.00 2,023.00 0.37 %0.0001.00.60215.00 548,561.00

PAYROLL TAXES 108,331.00 59,259.54 49,071.46 45.30 %8,934.3401.00.60220.00 108,331.00

UNIFORM REIMBURSEMENT 28,080.00 9,758.24 18,321.76 65.25 %1,921.6801.00.60223.00 28,080.00

EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT 139,341.00 52,722.74 86,618.26 62.16 %10,691.3701.00.60225.00 139,341.00

RETIREES' HEALTH INSURANCE 638,423.00 164,824.45 473,598.55 74.18 %32,853.2901.00.60231.00 638,423.00

AUDIT & BOOKKEEPING SERVICES 0.00 76.03 -76.03 0.00 %0.0001.00.61103.00 0.00

LIABILITY INSURANCE 78,454.00 71,273.00 7,181.00 9.15 %0.0001.00.61115.00 78,454.00

CONTINGENCY 41,510.00 0.00 41,510.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.62999.00 41,510.00

TRANSFERS OUT 376,626.00 0.00 376,626.00 100.00 %0.0001.00.67099.00 376,626.00

Item 5c 
Page 3 of 7

Page 14 of 230



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2024-2025 Period Ending: 11/30/2024

12/3/2024 9:05:42 PM Page 2 of 5

Fiscal
Ac vity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current 

Total Budget
Period

Ac vity
Original 

Total Budget

AUDIT & BOOKEEPING SERVICES 33,552.00 14,443.60 19,108.40 56.95 %2,074.7901.05.61103.00 33,552.00

OTHER CONTRACT SERVICES 73,625.00 42,908.55 30,716.45 41.72 %360.5201.05.61105.00 73,625.00

ATTORNEY/LEGAL FEES 18,000.00 2,231.50 15,768.50 87.60 %0.0001.05.61107.00 18,000.00

PERS ADMINISTRATIVE FEE 2,900.00 1,354.35 1,545.65 53.30 %257.3501.05.61112.00 2,900.00

CONTRACT SERVICES-SAN ANSELM 95,555.00 47,777.50 47,777.50 50.00 %0.0001.05.61120.00 95,555.00

COMPUTER SOFTWARE/SUPPORT 36,661.00 19,386.74 17,274.26 47.12 %360.0001.05.61121.00 36,661.00

WEB PAGE DESIGN AND MAINTENA 8,960.00 0.00 8,960.00 100.00 %0.0001.05.61122.00 8,960.00

HEALTH AND WELLNESS 58,991.00 6,485.00 52,506.00 89.01 %0.0001.05.61127.00 58,991.00

HIRING EXPENSES 16,000.00 6,573.01 9,426.99 58.92 %889.0001.05.61129.00 16,000.00

PUBLICATIONS AND DUES 10,162.00 2,597.56 7,564.44 74.44 %0.0001.05.61300.00 10,162.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES 5,100.00 362.18 4,737.82 92.90 %0.0001.05.62000.00 5,100.00

POSTAGE 1,115.00 369.90 745.10 66.83 %0.0001.05.62003.00 1,115.00

GENERAL DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 13,932.00 1,849.09 12,082.91 86.73 %101.6501.05.62200.00 13,932.00

EXPLORER POST 9,548.00 0.00 9,548.00 100.00 %0.0001.10.60065.02 9,548.00

TRAINING AND EDUCATION 48,260.00 15,872.42 32,387.58 67.11 %390.0001.10.61000.00 48,260.00

DISPATCH 386,830.00 0.00 386,830.00 100.00 %0.0001.10.61100.00 386,830.00

RADIO REPAIR 5,305.00 356.25 4,948.75 93.28 %0.0001.10.61101.00 5,305.00

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL REMOVAL 1,030.00 250.75 779.25 75.66 %0.0001.10.61102.00 1,030.00

AUDIT & BOOKKEEPING SERVICES 10,332.00 0.00 10,332.00 100.00 %0.0001.10.61103.00 10,332.00

MERA OPERATING EXPENSE 107,339.00 0.00 107,339.00 100.00 %0.0001.10.61110.00 107,339.00

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 13,625.00 -471.59 14,096.59 103.46 %0.0001.10.61410.00 13,625.00

EMERGENCY RESPONSE SUPPLIES 4,612.00 284.56 4,327.44 93.83 %0.0001.10.62203.00 4,612.00

PARAMEDIC RESPONSE SUPPLIES 41,200.00 16,341.61 24,858.39 60.34 %1,144.3901.10.62204.00 41,200.00

BREATHING APPARATUS 7,320.00 0.00 7,320.00 100.00 %0.0001.10.62210.00 7,320.00

BREATHING APPARATUS-CONTRACT 7,758.00 0.00 7,758.00 100.00 %0.0001.10.62211.00 7,758.00

PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMEN 40,548.00 9.80 40,538.20 99.98 %0.0001.10.62213.00 40,548.00

EQUIPMENT 41,200.00 11,194.79 30,005.21 72.83 %0.0001.10.63131.00 41,200.00

HYDRANTS 41,281.00 39,508.08 1,772.92 4.29 %0.0001.10.63140.00 41,281.00

COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT 22,947.00 101.69 22,845.31 99.56 %0.0001.10.63150.00 22,947.00

TURNOUTS 50,359.00 0.00 50,359.00 100.00 %0.0001.10.63160.00 50,359.00

MERA BOND PAYMENT PRIOR AUT 0.00 74,199.00 -74,199.00 0.00 %0.0001.10.64401.00 0.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE AND LAN 18,500.00 5,381.65 13,118.35 70.91 %980.9901.14.61500.00 18,500.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE STATION  15,000.00 487.40 14,512.60 96.75 %0.0001.14.61500.18 15,000.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE STATION  15,000.00 -503.87 15,503.87 103.36 %34.4801.14.61500.19 15,000.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE STATION  15,000.00 462.31 14,537.69 96.92 %170.0001.14.61500.20 15,000.00

BUILDING MAINTENANCE STATION  15,000.00 4,315.05 10,684.95 71.23 %63.4201.14.61500.21 15,000.00

GAS AND ELECTRIC 67,500.00 21,476.76 46,023.24 68.18 %0.0001.14.61702.00 67,500.00

WATER 11,750.00 5,236.05 6,513.95 55.44 %1,707.2001.14.61703.00 11,750.00

SEWER 4,532.00 0.00 4,532.00 100.00 %0.0001.14.61704.00 4,532.00

TELEPHONE 84,721.00 21,693.21 63,027.79 74.39 %5,405.9301.14.61705.00 84,721.00

JANITORIAL MAINTENANCE SUPPLI 10,609.00 2,218.59 8,390.41 79.09 %242.1001.14.62206.00 10,609.00

FURNISHINGS 8,487.00 0.00 8,487.00 100.00 %0.0001.14.62501.00 8,487.00

APPLIANCES 5,150.00 0.00 5,150.00 100.00 %0.0001.14.63040.00 5,150.00

OFFICE EQUIPMENT 10,609.00 0.00 10,609.00 100.00 %0.0001.14.63041.00 10,609.00

EXERCISE EQUIPMENT 10,927.00 899.78 10,027.22 91.77 %0.0001.14.63042.00 10,927.00

TECHNOLOGY PURCHASES 26,718.00 670.11 26,047.89 97.49 %0.0001.14.63044.00 26,718.00

PAYROLL TAXES - COMMUNITY EDU 0.00 7.25 -7.25 0.00 %0.0001.15.60220.00 0.00

FIRE PREVENTION 4,880.00 199.91 4,680.09 95.90 %0.0001.15.61131.00 4,880.00

MWPA Local Projects 0.00 35,410.60 -35,410.60 0.00 %0.0001.15.61903.00 0.00

MWPA CORE FUNDS 0.00 135.24 -135.24 0.00 %0.0001.15.61904.00 0.00

COMMUNITY EDUCATION & PREP. 9,616.00 3,178.82 6,437.18 66.94 %0.0001.15.62220.00 9,616.00

BURN TRAILER MAINTENANCE 10,162.00 394.79 9,767.21 96.12 %0.0001.25.61411.00 10,162.00

FLEET MAINTENANCE/REPAIRS 124,115.00 36,081.45 88,033.55 70.93 %1,024.4001.25.61600.00 124,115.00

FUEL 59,225.00 18,244.15 40,980.85 69.20 %1,577.3101.25.62988.00 59,225.00

FLEET PARTS 18,025.00 4,335.58 13,689.42 75.95 %0.0001.25.62989.00 18,025.00

Expense Total: 6,803,419.93850,285.2714,908,471.00 14,908,471.00 8,105,051.07 54.37%

Fund: 01 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): -207,732.35366,679.10-999.00 -999.00 -206,733.35 20,694.03%

Item 5c 
Page 4 of 7

Page 15 of 230



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2024-2025 Period Ending: 11/30/2024

12/3/2024 9:05:42 PM Page 3 of 5

Fiscal
Ac vity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Remaining
Current 

Total Budget
Period

Ac vity
Original 

Total Budget

Fund: 15 - VEHICLE FUND

Revenue

TRANSFERS IN -376,626.00 0.00 376,626.00 0.00 %0.0015.00.51999.00 -376,626.00

Revenue Total: 0.000.00-376,626.00 -376,626.00 376,626.00 100.00%

Expense

VEHICLE PURCHASE 340,411.00 -3,900.00 344,311.00 101.15 %0.0015.00.63154.00 340,411.00

LEASE PAYMENT - PRINCIPAL 161,252.59 161,252.59 0.00 0.00 %0.0015.00.64010.00 161,252.59

LEASE PAYMENT - INTEREST 7,864.63 7,864.63 0.00 0.00 %0.0015.00.64110.00 7,864.63

Expense Total: 165,217.220.00509,528.22 509,528.22 344,311.00 67.57%

Fund: 15 - VEHICLE FUND Surplus (Deficit): -165,217.220.00-886,154.22 -886,154.22 720,937.00 81.36%

Report Surplus (Deficit): 366,679.10 -372,949.57-887,153.22 -887,153.22 514,203.65 57.96%

Item 5c 
Page 5 of 7

Page 16 of 230



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2024-2025 Period Ending: 11/30/2024

12/3/2024 9:05:42 PM Page 4 of 5

Group Summary

Fiscal
Ac vity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Ac vityAccount Type

Current 
Total Budget

Original 
Total Budget

Percent
Remaining

Fund: 01 - GENERAL FUND

Revenue 6,595,687.581,216,964.3714,907,472.00 14,907,472.00 -8,311,784.42 55.76%

Expense 6,803,419.93850,285.2714,908,471.00 14,908,471.00 8,105,051.07 54.37%

-207,732.35366,679.10-999.00 -999.00 -206,733.35Fund: 01 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): 20,694.03%

Fund: 15 - VEHICLE FUND

Revenue 0.000.00-376,626.00 -376,626.00 376,626.00 100.00%

Expense 165,217.220.00509,528.22 509,528.22 344,311.00 67.57%

-165,217.220.00-886,154.22 -886,154.22 720,937.00Fund: 15 - VEHICLE FUND Surplus (Deficit): 81.36%

Report Surplus (Deficit): 366,679.10 -372,949.57-887,153.22 -887,153.22 514,203.65 57.96%

Item 5c 
Page 6 of 7

Page 17 of 230



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2024-2025 Period Ending: 11/30/2024

12/3/2024 9:05:42 PM Page 5 of 5

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Ac vity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Ac vity
Current 

Total Budget
Original 

Total Budget

01 - GENERAL FUND -207,732.35366,679.10-999.00 -999.00 -206,733.35

15 - VEHICLE FUND -165,217.220.00-886,154.22 -886,154.22 720,937.00

Report Surplus (Deficit): 366,679.10 -372,949.57-887,153.22 -887,153.22 514,203.65

Item 5c 
Page 7 of 7

Page 18 of 230



ROSS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT
Minutes of the Ross Valley Fire Board Meeting of November 13, 2024

Note: These are summary action minutes only. The zoom recording can be accessed by clicking here. The
passcode is Rvfd111324#

RVFD BOARDMEETING MINUTES

1. 6:30pm Call to order.

Board Present: Kircher, Robbins, Burdo, Colbert, Shortall, Finn, Hellman, Coler
Board Absents:
Staff Present: Mahoney, Zuba, Lim
Town Managers Present: Donery, Johnson

Agenda – November 13, 2024

2. Chief Report – Verbal Update by Fire Chief Mahoney

Recruitment Update: We recently posted a new recruitment for Firefighter Paramedics with the hopes of
hiring two more. There are three Firefighter Paramedic candidates currently in backgrounds. The goal is
to start them in December or January at the latest. One of our Fire Inspectors has left the Department for
another department, so we will also be hosting a recruitment for this position in the next month.

Burn Foundation: The Alisa Ann Ruch Burn Foundation came through town last month. They host a
relay to raise funds for burn victims and the Ross Valley Firefighter’s Club donated $1,000 this year.

Incident Reports:
Pumpkin Ride Trail Rescue - This ride starts in Fairfax and goes up into open space areas on Halloween.
There was a bad e-bicycle wreck at the end of Glen Drive. Crews arrived to an unconscious patient. They
provided patient care and the patient was transported to the hospital.
Organ Donation - Last month crews responded to a call involving a young man who was transported to
MarinHealth where he was placed on life support. The patient's family made the decision to take him off
of life support and to donate his organs. The family invited Department members to the Donor Walk,
which is a ceremony where family members accompany their loved ones through the ICU to the operating
room. RVFD was honored to support the family and to witness the powerful act of generosity and life
saving compassion.

Recognition of Director Colbert: Chief Mahoney presented Director Colbert with a plaque and thanked
him for his two years of service and support of the Department.

No public comment.

3. Consent Agenda: Items on the consent agenda may be removed and discussed separately.
Discussion may take place at the end of the agenda. Otherwise, all items may be approved
with one action.

No public comment.

M/S Coler/Robbins to approve consent agenda – roll call vote, seven ayes: Kircher, Robbins,
Colbert, Shortall, Finn, Hellman, Coler

Item 5d
Page 1 of 3

Page 19 of 230

https://us06web.zoom.us/rec/share/dWZ3WJiUkVlbD6ZZ5uNrfEnPgRjmqYjdg-Sld3yA_WV9OOfOppFgb-JObEXdmLSS.qntvC3ybFng1046U
https://rossvalleyfire.org/attachments/article/50500/Agenda%2011.13.24.pdf


November 13, 2024

4. Creation of Wildfire Preparedness Coordinator Position – Fire Chief Mahoney

The Job Description in the Board packet was missing the last page that included the “Physical
Requirements”. Chief Mahoney provided printed copies and noted that if the position was passed, an
amendment would need to be included.

Chief Mahoney summarized the Staff Report.

Director Shortall shared that he feels this updated job description more appropriately aligns with the
MWPA, which will clarify the position. Fire Safe Marin is excited to work with this position.

Director Hellman asked if this position will still attend community meetings and events. Chief Mahoney
confirmed the position will be the Ross Valley Fire Department representative at community meetings and
events and will be available to help facilitate.

Director Robbins asked if the position is new or ongoing. Chief Mahoney stated this is a previously
approved position that has been vacant for the past year.

There was discussion about how this position would be funded. Previously, the Emergency Preparedness
Coordinator position was funded 100% through MWPA local funds. To account for the Wildfire
Preparedness Coordinator position being involved in activities and duties that fall outside of the MWPA’s
goals, the funding structure has changed to 90% of the position being funded through MWPA local funds
and the remaining 10% being paid for by Member Agencies.

No public comment.

M/S Hellman/Burdo to approve Resolution 24-09 the Creation of the Wildfire Preparedness
Coordinator Position – roll call vote, eight ayes: Kircher, Robbins, Colbert, Burdo, Shortall, Finn,
Hellman, Coler

5. Town of Ross Station 18 One-Year Delay Closure Letter – Fire Chief Mahoney

Chief Mahoney summarized the Staff Report.

Ross Town Manager Johnson would like to see this resolved by the end of the year.

Director Robbins said this all came about because when Ross made the decision to close Station 18, there
were a number of things the Town of Ross was told would happen and they haven’t been happening.
Ross’ goal is having first responders present.

The Board is deferring any action on this topic until the upcoming RVPA meetings have occurred.

No public comment.

6. Announce Adjournment to Closed Session: 7:00pm

Conference with Labor Negotiator - Labor Negotiator Recommendation and CalPERS Educational
Incentive Audit

7. Announce Action in Closed Session, if any.

Item 5d
Page 2 of 3

Page 20 of 230



November 13, 2024

Item 6A - Labor Negotiator Recommendation - Staff was given direction regarding Item 6A.

Item 6B - CalPERS Educational Incentive Audit - The Board authorized the recommended changes to the
educational incentive pay, which is part of the Ross Valley Firefighters’ and Ross Valley Fire Chief
Officers Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), to meet the May 2024 CalPERS audit requirements.
The changes will be in the form of a side letter attached to the Ross Valley Firefighters’ and Ross Valley
Fire Chief Officers MOU’s for contract years 2019 through 2022 and 2022 through 2025. Staff has been
directed to bring this item to the December Board meeting for final approval.

8. Board requests for future agenda items, questions, and comments to staff, staff
miscellaneous items.

Director Hellman has two related requests.
1.) Report back on the dollar amount in the OES Reimbursement fund.
2.) Discussion around can Member Agency’s be credited back monies from the OES Reimbursement fund
if the money is exclusively used for public safety along with a general review of what might be done with
the funds.

9. Open time for Public Expression: The public is welcome to address the Board on matters
not on the agenda. Please be advised that pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2,
the Board is not permitted to take action on any matter not on the agenda unless it
determines that an emergency exists and that the need to take action arose following the
posting of the agenda.

No public comment.

10. Adjourn

The next meeting is scheduled for December 11, 2024, San Anselmo Town Council Chambers, at 525 San
Anselmo Ave. San Anselmo, CA 94960, and via Zoom.

Respectfully submitted,
s/Samantha Stettler
Administrative Assistant III

Item 5d
Page 3 of 3

Page 21 of 230



ROSS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT
STAFF REPORT

For the meeting of December 11, 2024

To: Board of Directors

From: Dan Mahoney, Fire Chief

Subject: The Board Authorizes the Recommended Changes to the “Educational Incentive
Pay” (Exhibit D), part of the Ross Valley Fire Fighters and Ross Valley Fire Chief
Officers Memorandum of Understanding, to meet the May 2024 Cal PERS Audit
Requirements.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board authorize the recommended changes (previously approved in
closed session on November 13, 2024) to the “Educational Incentive Pay” (Exhibit D), part of
the Ross Valley Fire Fighters and Ross Valley Fire Chief Officers Memorandum of
Understanding, to meet the May 2024 Cal PERS audit requirements. The changes will be in the
form of a side letter attached to the Ross Valley Fire Fighters and Ross Valley Fire Chief Officers
Memorandum of Understanding for contract years 2019-2022 and 2022-2025.

BACKGROUND

On November 13, 2024, the Board approved this staff report recommendation in a closed
session. The same recommendation is being brought back to open session for final approval.

DISCUSSION

On October 31, 2023 the Department was notified (Attachment #1) that the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) would be performing a randomized audit regarding
our current “Educational Incentive Pay” (Exhibit D), which is part of the Ross Valley Fire
Fighters and Ross Valley Chief Officers Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

The objective of the Office of Audit Services (OFAS) review was to determine whether public
agencies (employers) reported Educational Incentive Pay for classic members in compliance
with Government Code (GC) section 20636 and Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations
(CCR) section 571. OFAS’ review was limited to examining employer records and a sample of
employee records for the period of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023. This timeframe spans

Item 5e
Page 1 of 3

Page 22 of 230



two separate contract periods (2019 - 2022 and 2022 - 2025) for the Ross Valley Fire Fighters
and Ross Valley Fire Chief Officers MOU’s.

The Department worked with CalPERS and the labor groups (Fire Fighter and Chief Officers) to
make changes to meet the CalPERS audit requirements. Both groups agreed that every effort
would be made to meet the CalPERS requirements while ensuring that all employees receiving
the Educational Incentive would continue to do so. We were successful in accomplishing this
goal.

The audit (Attachment # 2) found an “Observation” (required changes needed) and an “Other
Matter” (recommended action).

Observation 1: (Required Changes Needed)

The Employer reported Educational Incentive Pay for one sampled active employee and one
sampled retired employee that was not reportable. Specifically, the Employer could not
demonstrate the employees’ eligibility for the reported Educational Incentive Pay. For example,
for one retired employee, the Employer reported Educational Incentive Pay of $145.86 for pay
period ending August 31, 2022. The Employer’s written labor policy for the International
Association of Firefighters (IAFF) Local 1775, effective July 1, 2022, stated employees who
obtain a Fire Science degree or 60 units towards a Fire Science degree shall receive 2.5% of base
monthly salary. The Employer provided documents to indicate the employee completed 31 fire
course units and 39 units from another college. However, the Employer was unable to provide
documentation to identify the courses completed for the 39 units from another college. As a
result, the Employer was unable to demonstrate how the 39 units qualify as eligible course units
for a Fire Science degree. The Employer should maintain sufficient documentation to
demonstrate the employees’ eligibility complied with the IAFF Local 1775 labor policy
Educational Incentive Pay provisions.

● To be in compliance, the Department made the following changes:
○ The Department acknowledged and made the following changes (Strike

out)/additions (underlined):
■ All employees who have an Associate’s Degree Fire Science degree or 60

college units toward a Fire Science degree shall receive a sum equivalent
to 2.5% of base monthly salary.

○ The Department acknowledges and added language outlining or showing a
program or system is in place to evaluate and approve acceptable courses to
receive Educational Incentive pay.

■ Added: “An educational incentive shall commence at the beginning of the
month following approval by the Fire Chief or their designee. The
bargaining unit member is responsible for providing the Fire Chief or their
designee with all necessary proof of meeting the requirements. This shall
include, but is not limited to, copies of all certificates or degrees for which
benefits are requested.”

Item 5e
Page 2 of 3

Page 23 of 230



○ The Department included language in the side letter that implements these
changes retroactively to July 1, 2019*. The side letter will be attached to the
following MOU’s. (Attachment #3)

■ 2019 - 2022 Ross Valley Fire Fighters and Ross Valley Chief Officers
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). (Attachment #4)

■ 2022 - 2025 Ross Valley Fire Fighters and Ross Valley Chief Officers
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). (Attachment #5)

*Note: Retroactive to July 1, 2021, was an audit requirement based on the audit timeline;
however, PERS also recommended dating back further. The July 1, 2019, meets the requirements,
and the recommendation was also taken into consideration to date back further to the start of the
2019 - 2022 MOU.

Other Matter Noted: (recommended action)

The Employer incorrectly reported the earnings for two sampled active employees. Specifically,
the Employer did not report full-time earnings and incorrectly included additional compensation
in earnings. For one employee, the Employer reported earnings of $2,362.74 for the pay period
ending December 31, 2022. However, the employee’s payroll register showed the employee’s
full-time earnings were $5,834.52 for the pay period ending December 31, 2022. For another
employee, the Employer reported earnings of $5,570.35 for the pay period ending July 15, 2022.
However, the reported earnings incorrectly included $552.01 of Paramedic Incentive Pay.

● The Department acknowledged and corrected the following other matter
recommendations:

○ Although the other matter noted is not within the scope of the audit performed for
educational incentive pay, it may turn into an observation/finding in a future
compensation review or audit performed.

○ The Department acknowledges the other matter noted and it has been corrected
through the Finance department.

FISCAL IMPACT

All changes made to meet the CalPERS Audit requirements incurred no fiscal impacts.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment #1 – CalPERS Engagement Letter
Attachment #2 – CalPERS Audit Report
Attachment #3 - Signed Side Letter (Exhibit D)
Attachment #4 – 2019 - 2022 Ross Valley Fire Fighters and Ross Valley Chief Officers

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
Attachment #5 – 2022 - 2025 Ross Valley Fire Fighters and Ross Valley Chief Officers

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

Item 5e
Page 3 of 3

Page 24 of 230



California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
Office of Audit Services  
400 Q Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 | Phone: (916) 795-0422  
888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) | TTY: (877) 249-7442 | www.calpers.ca.gov

Memorandum 

October 31, 2023 

To: CalPERS Contracting Agencies 

From: Cindie Lor  
Assistant Division Chief 
Office of Audit Services 

Subject: Educational Incentive Pay Review 

As part of the Office of Audit Services (OFAS) Audit Plan for fiscal year 2023-24, we are 
performing a review of Educational Incentive Pay reported as special compensation. Your 
agency has been selected as an employer to be included in this review. The objective of the 
review is to determine whether public agencies (employers) reported Educational Incentive Pay 
for classic members in compliance with Government Code section 20636 and Title 2 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 571. Our review period is from July 1, 2021 through   
June 30, 2023.  

In accordance with GC section 20222.5, we will need to review pertinent documents and 
records covering the review period. The results of our review will be communicated with a draft 
report to each employer. The draft report will include observations identified, if any, and 
provide an opportunity for the employer to respond to the draft report. The employer’s 
response and our evaluation of your response will be included in a consolidated final report 
summarizing the results for all employers reviewed, and each employer’s report will be 
included as an attachment to the final report. 

It is each employer’s responsibility to ensure compliance with the Public Employees’ Retirement 
Law. We will contact you to discuss the review objectives, necessary documentation, and to 
schedule audit fieldwork. 

Item 5e 
Attachment #1 

Page 1 of 2

Page 25 of 230



October 31, 2023 
Page 2 

Please share a copy of this letter with your Human Resources Director to inform them of this 
review as soon as possible. In addition, please email the following documents to 
Vicki.Shaw@CalPERS.ca.gov by November 8, 2023: 

 Employee roster of all active and retired Classic employees employed during
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023 showing the names, position titles, collective
bargaining units (and where an employee is not in a collective bargaining unit but is
under a contract, a statement they are under contract) and whether the employee is
currently active or retired.

 Policies and procedures, Memoranda of Understanding, employment agreements,
rules, and regulations, etc., that address or define the application of your agency’s
policy for payment and reporting of Educational Incentive Pay for your Classic
employees that were approved by your Governing Body.

In addition, we will need to have the following records available during audit fieldwork for the 
selected sampled employees: 

 Complete personnel records or files.

 Information pertaining to any calculation and payments of Educational Incentive
Pay, including payroll check stubs, and any other personnel or payment records used
to determine, pay, and report amounts of Educational Incentive Pay for your Classic
employees.

 Any other information or documents deemed reasonably necessary to determine
the accuracy of reported Educational Incentive Pay.

GC section 20222.5 provides OFAS the authority to review employers under resolution or 
contract with CalPERS and to assess a reasonable fee to recover the additional costs incurred 
when the time required to complete a review exceeds the estimated hours. We estimate the 
review to take 120 hours to complete. 

If you have any questions, please contact Vicki Shaw, Associate Program Auditor, at 
(916) 795-2339.

Item 5e 
Attachment #1 

Page 2 of 2

Page 26 of 230



ROSS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT

Educational Incentive Pay Review Page A-76 

Objective and Scope 

CalPERS ID Job Number Contract Date 

4521367135 1P23-019 July 1, 1982 

The objective of the Office of Audit Services (OFAS) review was to determine whether public 
agencies (employers) reported Educational Incentive Pay for classic members in compliance 
with Government Code (GC) section 20636 and Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations 
(CCR) section 571.  

Educational Incentive Pay is an item of special compensation and must meet the requirements 
of GC section 20636, and the definition and criteria listed in CCR section 571. Specifically,    
CCR section 571, subdivision (a)(2), defines Educational Incentive Pay as compensation to 
employees for completing educational courses, certificates and degrees which enhance their 
ability to do their job. The employer must have a program or system in place to evaluate and 
approve acceptable courses. Educational Incentive Pay does not include costs of education that 
is required for the employee’s current job classification and reimbursement for an application or 
test, books, tuition, or travel costs. Additionally, CCR section 571, subdivision (b), outlines that all 
items of special compensation must be contained in a written labor policy or agreement that has 
been duly approved and adopted by the employer’s governing body. The written labor policy or 
agreement must indicate the eligibility and conditions for payment of the pay item that must be 
available to all members in the group or class of employment for work performed during normal 
hours of employment.  

Incorrect reporting of Educational Incentive Pay may result in miscalculation of employer 
contributions, delays in processing member retirement benefits, inaccurate retirement estimates, 
incorrect payment of benefits, reduction in benefits, and increased employer administrative costs 
for processing corrections to all impacted employee accounts for the periods the misreporting 
occurred.

OFAS’ review was limited to examining employer records and a sample of employee records for 
the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023. Unless otherwise specified, OFAS did not 
review the employer’s compliance with the Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) with 
regard to any areas outside of the scope described herein, including, but not limited to, other 
types of compensation, membership enrollment, or employment after retirement. In addition, 
OFAS did not review sampled employees’ job classifications minimum qualifications for required 
education or certification, unless stated in the employer's written labor policy or agreement. 

Results in Brief 

No. Area Observation 

1 Not Reportable – 
Eligibility Not 
Supported 

The Employer reported Educational Incentive Pay for one sampled 
active employee and one sampled retired employee that was not 
reportable. Specifically, the Employer could not demonstrate the 
employees’ eligibility for the reported Educational Incentive Pay. 
For example, for one retired employee, the Employer reported 

Item 5e 
Attachment #2 

Page 1 of 3

Page 27 of 230



ROSS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Educational Incentive Pay Review   Page A-77 

No. Area Observation 

Educational Incentive Pay of $145.86 for pay period ending  
August 31, 2022. The Employer’s written labor policy for the 
International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) Local 1775, 
effective July 1, 2022, stated employees who obtain a Fire Science 
degree or 60 units towards a Fire Science degree shall receive 
2.5% of base monthly salary. The Employer provided documents to 
indicate the employee completed 31 fire course units and 39 units 
from another college. However, the Employer was unable to 
provide documentation to identify the courses completed for the 39 
units from another college. As a result, the Employer was unable to 
demonstrate how the 39 units qualify as eligible course units for a 
Fire Science degree. The Employer should maintain sufficient 
documentation to demonstrate the employees’ eligibility complied 
with the IAFF Local 1775 labor policy Educational Incentive Pay 
provisions.  
 
CCR section 571, subdivision (a)(2), defines Educational Incentive 
Pay as compensation to employees for completing educational 
courses, certificates and degrees which enhance their ability to do 
their job. A program or system must be in place to evaluate and 
approve acceptable course. Additionally, CCR section 571, 
subdivision (b), states that items of special compensation must be 
contained in an approved written labor policy or agreement, which 
must indicate conditions of payment for the item of special 
compensation, including but not limited to, eligibility for and 
amount. The Employer explained the employees were eligible 
because they considered general education course units as 
qualifying units for a Fire Science degree. 
   

 

Recommendation and Criteria

The Employer should ensure Educational Incentive Pay is reported in compliance with         
GC section 20636, and CCR section 571. The Employer should work with CalPERS Employer 
Account Management Division to identify all active and retired members impacted and for all 
impacted members identified, determine the accurate amount of Educational Incentive Pay, 
and what adjustments, if any, are needed to correct written labor policies or agreements, 
and/or inaccurately reported Educational Incentive Pay amounts. To the extent that any 
amounts of pay were improperly included in the retirement allowance of retired members, a 
correction to the retirement allowance should be made pursuant to GC section 20160.  

GC: § 20120, § 20121, § 20122, § 20160, and § 20636 
CCR: § 571 

Item 5e 
Attachment #2 

Page 2 of 3

Page 28 of 230



ROSS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Educational Incentive Pay Review   Page A-78 

Other Matter  

OFAS identified one other matter that was outside the scope of this review. This matter was 
discussed with the Employer. OFAS encourages the Employer to work with CalPERS to 
ensure compliance with the PERL.  

No. Area Description 

1 Earnings 
Incorrectly 
Reported  

The Employer incorrectly reported the earnings for two sampled 
active employees. Specifically, the Employer did not report full-
time earnings and incorrectly included additional compensation in 
earnings. For one employee, the Employer reported earnings of 
$2,362.74 for the pay period ending December 31, 2022. 
However, the employee’s payroll register showed the employee’s 
full-time earnings was $5,834.52 for the pay period ending 
December 31, 2022. For another employee, the Employer 
reported earnings of $5,570.35 for the pay period ending July 15, 
2022. However, the reported earnings incorrectly included 
$552.01 of Paramedic Incentive Pay.  
  

 

Conclusion 

OFAS limited this review to the areas specified in the objective and scope section of this 
report. The review was conducted in accordance with the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our 
findings and conclusions. Sample testing procedures provide reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that the Employer complied with the specified provisions of the PERL, and the 
CalPERS contract subject to this review. The results outlined in this report are based on 
information made available or otherwise obtained at the time this report was prepared. This 
report does not constitute a final determination with regard to the results noted within the 
report. The appropriate CalPERS divisions will notify the Employer of the final determinations 
and provide appeal rights, if applicable, at that time.
 

Summarized Response 

The Employer disagreed with the Observation and stated they will work on clarifying the intent 
of the educational incentive program in their IAFF Local 1775 labor policy. In addition, for the 
active employee, the Employer provided an academic plan, dated February 2, 2024, to 
demonstrate course units transferred from other colleges qualify as units for a Fire Science 
degree. OFAS reviewed the documentation and noted that the academic plan identifies six 
units from one college; however, the plan does not identify all courses completed for the 33 
units transferred from another college. Therefore, the Observation will remain as stated.

Item 5e 
Attachment #2 

Page 3 of 3

Page 29 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #3 

Page 1 of 3

Page 30 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #3 

Page 2 of 3

Page 31 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #3 

Page 3 of 3

Page 32 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 

Page 1 of 93

Page 33 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 

Page 2 of 93

Page 34 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 

Page 3 of 93

Page 35 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 

Page 4 of 93

Page 36 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 

Page 5 of 93

Page 37 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 

Page 6 of 93

Page 38 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 

Page 7 of 93

Page 39 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 

Page 8 of 93

Page 40 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 

Page 9 of 93

Page 41 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 10 of 93

Page 42 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 11 of 93

Page 43 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 12 of 93

Page 44 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 13 of 93

Page 45 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 14 of 93

Page 46 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 15 of 93

Page 47 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 16 of 93

Page 48 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 17 of 93

Page 49 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 18 of 93

Page 50 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 19 of 93

Page 51 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 20 of 93

Page 52 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 21 of 93

Page 53 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 22 of 93

Page 54 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 23 of 93

Page 55 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 24 of 93

Page 56 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 25 of 93

Page 57 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 26 of 93

Page 58 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 27 of 93

Page 59 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 28 of 93

Page 60 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 29 of 93

Page 61 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 30 of 93

Page 62 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 31 of 93

Page 63 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 32 of 93

Page 64 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 33 of 93

Page 65 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 34 of 93

Page 66 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 35 of 93

Page 67 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 36 of 93

Page 68 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 37 of 93

Page 69 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 38 of 93

Page 70 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 39 of 93

Page 71 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 40 of 93

Page 72 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 41 of 93

Page 73 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 42 of 93

Page 74 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 43 of 93

Page 75 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 44 of 93

Page 76 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 45 of 93

Page 77 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 46 of 93

Page 78 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 47 of 93

Page 79 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 48 of 93

Page 80 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 49 of 93

Page 81 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 50 of 93

Page 82 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 51 of 93

Page 83 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 52 of 93

Page 84 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 53 of 93

Page 85 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 54 of 93

Page 86 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 55 of 93

Page 87 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 56 of 93

Page 88 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 57 of 93

Page 89 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 58 of 93

Page 90 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 59 of 93

Page 91 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 60 of 93

Page 92 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 61 of 93

Page 93 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 62 of 93

Page 94 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 63 of 93

Page 95 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 64 of 93

Page 96 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 65 of 93

Page 97 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 66 of 93

Page 98 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 67 of 93

Page 99 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 68 of 93

Page 100 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 69 of 93

Page 101 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 70 of 93

Page 102 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 71 of 93

Page 103 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 72 of 93

Page 104 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 73 of 93

Page 105 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 74 of 93

Page 106 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 75 of 93

Page 107 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 76 of 93

Page 108 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 77 of 93

Page 109 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 78 of 93

Page 110 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 79 of 93

Page 111 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 80 of 93

Page 112 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 81 of 93

Page 113 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 82 of 93

Page 114 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 83 of 93

Page 115 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 84 of 93

Page 116 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 85 of 93

Page 117 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 86 of 93

Page 118 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 87 of 93

Page 119 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 88 of 93

Page 120 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 89 of 93

Page 121 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 90 of 93

Page 122 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 91 of 93

Page 123 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 92 of 93

Page 124 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #4 
Page 93 of 93

Page 125 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 

Page 1 of 95

Page 126 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 

Page 2 of 95

Page 127 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 

Page 3 of 95

Page 128 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 

Page 4 of 95

Page 129 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 

Page 5 of 95

Page 130 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 

Page 6 of 95

Page 131 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 

Page 7 of 95

Page 132 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 

Page 8 of 95

Page 133 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 

Page 9 of 95

Page 134 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 10 of 95

Page 135 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 11 of 95

Page 136 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 12 of 95

Page 137 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 13 of 95

Page 138 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 14 of 95

Page 139 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 15 of 95

Page 140 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 16 of 95

Page 141 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 17 of 95

Page 142 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 18 of 95

Page 143 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 19 of 95

Page 144 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 20 of 95

Page 145 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 21 of 95

Page 146 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 22 of 95

Page 147 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 23 of 95

Page 148 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 24 of 95

Page 149 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 25 of 95

Page 150 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 26 of 95

Page 151 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 27 of 95

Page 152 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 28 of 95

Page 153 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 29 of 95

Page 154 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 30 of 95

Page 155 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 31 of 95

Page 156 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 32 of 95

Page 157 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 33 of 95

Page 158 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 34 of 95

Page 159 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 35 of 95

Page 160 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 36 of 95

Page 161 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 37 of 95

Page 162 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 38 of 95

Page 163 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 39 of 95

Page 164 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 40 of 95

Page 165 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 41 of 95

Page 166 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 42 of 95

Page 167 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 43 of 95

Page 168 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 44 of 95

Page 169 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 45 of 95

Page 170 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 46 of 95

Page 171 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 47 of 95

Page 172 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 48 of 95

Page 173 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 49 of 95

Page 174 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 50 of 95

Page 175 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 51 of 95

Page 176 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 52 of 95

Page 177 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 53 of 95

Page 178 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 54 of 95

Page 179 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 55 of 95

Page 180 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 56 of 95

Page 181 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 57 of 95

Page 182 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 58 of 95

Page 183 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 59 of 95

Page 184 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 60 of 95

Page 185 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 61 of 95

Page 186 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 62 of 95

Page 187 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 63 of 95

Page 188 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 64 of 95

Page 189 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 65 of 95

Page 190 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 66 of 95

Page 191 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 67 of 95

Page 192 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 68 of 95

Page 193 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 69 of 95

Page 194 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 70 of 95

Page 195 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 71 of 95

Page 196 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 72 of 95

Page 197 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 73 of 95

Page 198 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 74 of 95

Page 199 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 75 of 95

Page 200 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 76 of 95

Page 201 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 77 of 95

Page 202 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 78 of 95

Page 203 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 79 of 95

Page 204 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 80 of 95

Page 205 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 81 of 95

Page 206 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 82 of 95

Page 207 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 83 of 95

Page 208 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 84 of 95

Page 209 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 85 of 95

Page 210 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 86 of 95

Page 211 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 87 of 95

Page 212 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 88 of 95

Page 213 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 89 of 95

Page 214 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 90 of 95

Page 215 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 91 of 95

Page 216 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 92 of 95

Page 217 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 93 of 95

Page 218 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 94 of 95

Page 219 of 230



Item 5e 
Attachment #5 
Page 95 of 95

Page 220 of 230



ROSS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT
STAFF REPORT

For the meeting of December 11, 2024

To: Board of Directors

From: Dan Mahoney, Fire Chief

Subject: Receive an Update on the Recent Ross Valley Paramedic Authority Meeting as
they Relate to the Town of Ross Letter Requesting a One-Year Delay in the
Closure of Fire Station 18.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the RVFD Board receive an update on the current situation. Staff also
recommends the Board defer any action regarding a one-year delay on the closure of Fire Station
18.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

On October 14, 2024, Ross Valley Fire Board President Thomas Finn received a letter from Ross
Town Manager Christa Johnson (directed to do so by the Ross Town Council in a 5-0 vote)
requesting “an amendment to the Ross Valley Fire Department (RVFD) Joint Powers Authority
Agreement (JPA) dated January 1, 2022, to allow for a one-year delay in the closure of the Ross
Fire Station 18”.

The letter states the one-year delay will enable the Ross Valley Paramedic Authority (RVPA) to
complete its comprehensive study and engage in transparent Board discussions about the future
of the RVPA Joint Powers Agreement. An email was also received by RVPA Executive Officer
Chief Jason Weber stating that the Town of Ross is requesting a lease agreement be agreed on
before December 31, 2024.

The following RVPA meetings have taken place or are scheduled:

● November 21, 2024 - An RVPA Special Meeting (Attachment #1) was held that included
discussions around the next steps related to the Citygate report. Two working groups
were formed, one to “Strengthen The JPA” and one to “Increase Fiscal Accountability
and Transparency”. Several resolutions were passed to support the mission of the
working groups mentioned above. A closed session was also held (Negotiating Party:
Town of Ross, Under negotiation: Terms and conditions of lease).

Item 6
Page 1 of 2

Page 221 of 230



● December 5, 2024 - An RVPA Regular Meeting (Attachment #2) was held. The RVFD
Board packet will be distributed prior to this meeting. Chief Mahoney will provide a
verbal update.

At this time, staff feels additional deliberations on the RVPA Board would be beneficial before
taking action on the letter received from Ross regarding “ a one-year delay in the closure of the
Ross Fire Station 18”.

Staff will remain engaged with the RVPA discussions and will provide the Board with updates
and recommendations in future Board meetings.

FISCAL IMPACT

There are no fiscal impacts to this report.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment #1 – RVPA Board Packet for November 21, 2024
Attachment #2 – RVPA Board Packet for December 5, 2024

Item 6
Page 2 of 2

Page 222 of 230



 
 

1. Call to Order- Board Chair
2. Roll Call- Executive Officer
3. Pledge of Allegiance – Board Chair
4. Open Time for Public Input. Members of the Public have an opportunity to

comment on items not on tonight’s agenda.  Each member of the public has two
minutes in which to speak.  Board members and staff are not able to engage in
dialogue, answer questions or act on any of the items brought forward.  At the
Board’s discretion, matters brought forth may be placed on a future agenda.

5. NEW BUSINESS

6. OLD BUSINESS
a. Next Steps related to the Citygate report presented at your last meeting.

i. Staff recommendation(s): Board provide direction on next steps
as outlined in the staff report.

7. Public Comment on Closed Session Item

8. CLOSED SESSION Adjournment into Closed Session

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
Pursuant to California Government Code section 54956.8
Property: 33 Sir Francis Drake Blvd., Ross, CA 94957
Negotiator: Jason Weber, Ross Valley Paramedic Authority Executive Officer
Negotiating parties: Town of Ross
Under negotiation: Terms and condition of lease

9. Report out from Closed Session
10. Announcements/Future Agenda Items
11. Adjournment

Submitted, /s/ Jason Weber, Executive Officer  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 
Thursday, November 21, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. 
300 Tamalpais Dr., Corte Madera, CA 94925 
Corte Madera Town Hall Council Chambers 

Public can Join ZOOM Webinar 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85925703803?pwd=kUSAU5CRf6YPy4ouEX5ZTHbqPoV5sn.1 

Webinar ID: 859 2570 3803 - Passcode: 161228 - Phone: 1-669-900-6833 

Please be advised those participating in the meeting remotely via Zoom do so at their own 
risk. The RVPA regular Board meeting will not be cancelled if any technical problems occur 

during the meeting. Thank you. 

Item 6 
Attachment #1 

Page 1 of 6

Page 223 of 230

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85925703803?pwd=kUSAU5CRf6YPy4ouEX5ZTHbqPoV5sn.1


Item 6: Old Business

Item 6 
Attachment #1 

Page 2 of 6

Page 224 of 230



 

 

ROSS VALLEY PARAMEDIC AUTHORITY 

STAFF REPORT 

 
      For the meeting of November 21, 2024 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Jason Weber, Executive Officer  
 
Subject: Next steps associated with Citygate’s EMS Deployment, Governance and Fiscal 

Review of RVPA 
   
 

BACKGROUND: 

 
Over the last year your Board was asked to consider several policy issues with both short- 
and long-term impacts. The first is surrounding the lease with the Town of Ross, including 
terms and conditions to continue housing Medic 18 in the Town. The second is a request 
from the City of Larkspur Manager to expand the scope of the proposed study to consider 
changes with Larkspur and Corte Madera to include restructuring of our ambulance and 
paramedic services, up to possibly Larkspur and Corte Madera leaving RVPA.  
 
At your March 2024 meeting, your Board directed staff to engage the services of Citygate 
Associates, LLC to conduct a review and draft a report regarding RVPA’s EMS 
deployment, fiscal structures, and governance (Report). The Board also directed the 
retention of special legal counsel from the firm of Wright, L'Estrange & Ergastolo. 
 
At the November 7, 2024, Board meeting, your Board received the Report and heard a 
presentation on the key findings and recommendations, as well as public comments by 
representatives from City of Larkspur, Town of Ross, Central Marin Fire, Kentfield Fire, 
Ross Valley Fire, and RVPA member agencies’ labor organizations.  
 
The Report outlines near- and long-term action items, some of which are agendized 
separately today, and the others provided here for reference: 
 
Near term: 
 
• Reach written agreement(s) to stop any further consideration regarding the separation 

of RVPA into two parts. 

Longer term: 

• Update the RVPA agreement to clearly state operating policies and gain one set of 
revenues to expenditures with Corte Madera / Central Marin Fire Authority. 

• Refine as needed Capital Equipment replacement plans and multi-year cost 
allocations. Provide for an excess revenue true-up calculation to member agencies if 
reserves are fully funded.  

Item 6 
Attachment #1 

Page 3 of 6

Page 225 of 230



 

 

• Design a more layered, robust backup ambulance plan. 

• Monitor response performance against adopted goals. 

DISCUSSION: 

 

At this time, it is appropriate for your Board to indicate its commitment to stabilizing and 
re-integrating the RVPA business operations. Based on Citygate’s Report 
(Recommendation #11), the report’s presentation and remarks from Citygate, outside 
expert Counsel, and all the public comments indicate a desire to continue to operate 
RVPA as an integrated eight-member-agency Joint Powers Authority that delivers 
excellent service. Citygate noted that your Board is now positioned to send a strong 
signal to the County and to all parties involved, by directing staff to modernize the 
current JPA agreement and reintegrate the management of all expenses and payments. To 
avoid possible future misunderstandings, Staff recommends your Board use motions and 
votes for this purpose, after deliberation.  

 

Assuming policy direction on the key issues can be delivered today, staff recommends 
your Board create two Working Groups to detail the governance, fiscal, and other 
improvements needed to modernize and stabilize the JPA, using the Report’s findings 
and recommendations as a starting point, as follows: 

 

Working Group 1: Strengthening the JPA 

This Working Group would develop the fine details needed for strengthening the JPA 
through the implementation of centralized fiscal and other processes. The Working Group 
would give its recommendation to the full Board, who would see the detailed changes for 
policy review and then direct our legal counsel to draft the needed JPA revisions. 

Scope of Work WG 1: 

• Steps and methods to centralize all revenues and expenditures (Recommendation 
#5) 

• Steps and methods to include Central Marin FD’s ambulance and EMS equipment 
replacement costs into the JPA’s replacement schedule (Recommendations #3, 
#9) 

• Steps and methods to update the reserve contribution formula (Recommendation 
#4) 

• How to designate one purchasing agent (Recommendation #7) 

Item 6 
Attachment #1 

Page 4 of 6

Page 226 of 230



 

 

• Draft new common formulas for payments to all partners and establish a true-up 
mechanism (Recommendation #10); this also includes the establishment of a 
centralized patient billing contract services and the establishment of a JPA billing 
policy 

Proposed Membership:  

Member Fire Chiefs, a City Manager from Corte Madera or Larkspur, Board Member(s) 
from the east and west portions of RVPA.  

Working groups shall return to the RVPA Board with recommendations related to each 
item within their scope of work with explanation and potential recommendations. 

Working Group 2: Increasing Fiscal Accountability and Transparency  

The recommendations related to the need to increase fiscal transparency and 
accountability must be considered regardless of the outcome of Working Group 1, and 
there is no overlap between the scope of work for Working Groups 1 and 2. Therefore, a 
second Working Group is required. 

Scope of Work WG 2:  

• Set forth how any agency that hosts the RVPA’s revenues and expenses 
segregates, for audit purposes, the RVPA’s object accounts from those of the 
parent agency (currently Larkspur). 

• Design policies within governmental best practices for applying overhead and 
administrative costs identically across all RVPA agreements. Overhead rates 
should confirm with agency’s adopted fee schedule or, absent that, federal 
accounting rules for overhead (Recommendations #8). 

Proposed Membership:  

Finance Managers from affected agencies, Fire Chiefs, Board member(s) from the east 
and west portions of RVPA.  

The Board would see the detailed changes for policy review and then direct our legal 
counsel to draft the needed JPA revisions. 

Staff proposes that each Working Group hold initial discussions and return to your Board 
in the first quarter of 2025 outlining an implementation plan for its respective scope of 
work, including timeline. As Citygate stated during its final remarks, the goal of each 
Working Group is to provide attorneys with terms and provisions in sufficient detail to 
modify and modernize the JPA agreement and (sub)contracts. 

Recommendations #1 (lease with the Town of Ross for M18) is agendized separately 
during today’s meeting and is not in the scope of either Working Group.  
 

Item 6 
Attachment #1 

Page 5 of 6

Page 227 of 230



 

 

Recommendation #2 relates to the need to design and fund a more robust third ambulance 
capacity, and staff recommends the Executive Director and partner Fire Chiefs study this 
in parallel along with our labor units for possible implementation of at least a first step in 
FY 25/26.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD MOTION(s) 

 

1. Motion to direct that no further research work occur on fragmentation or separation of 
the JPA. 
 
2. Motion to task the Executive Officer and member agencies via the working groups to 
develop the appropriate policies, rules, and time phasing, restoring the JPA to collecting 
and managing a unified budget inclusive of all transport revenues and expenses. 
 
3. Motion to form Working Group #1 regarding strengthening the JPA and assign 
members. 
 
4. Motion to form Working Group #2 regarding increasing fiscal responsibility and 
transparency and assign members; and further direct the fiscal Working Group to design 
reimbursement formulas from RVPA to member agencies such that they universally 
apply to any affected agency, such as the payment of facility rent, etc. 
 
5. Motion to direct the Executive Officer to continue to use outside experts as/if needed 
to facilitate working groups, review, to best practices, draft implementation plans, and/or 
conduct special research. 
 
6. Motion to request an update memo every 90 days regarding progress on the above by 
the Executive Director, that the draft revised action items return to the Board no later than 
July 2025, and then, after Board direction, the revised JPA legal agreements be returned 
by November 2025 unless otherwise directed by the Board. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
It is estimated that the total project cost is approximately $70,000 to date including 
Citygate and other supporting consultants. Additional work and associated costs will vary 
depending on Board direction. Staff does recommend increasing budget authority an 
additional $30,000 to begin the work proposed in this staff report.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Jason Weber, Executive Officer 

Item 6 
Attachment #1 

Page 6 of 6

Page 228 of 230



ROSS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT
STAFF REPORT

For the meeting of December 11, 2024

To: Board of Directors

From: Dan Mahoney, Fire Chief
Jeff Zuba, Finance Director

Subject: Receive Update on Department Unassigned Reserve Account.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the RVFD Board receive an update on the Department's unassigned
reserve account.

BACKGROUND

On June 14, 2023, the Fire Board adopted Resolution 23-10, which established a reserve policy
requiring the maintenance of a minimum reserve level equal to 10% of the Department’s General
Fund expenditures. This policy serves as a safeguard for the Department’s financial health and
ensures it can address unanticipated needs.

DISCUSSION

At the November 2024 Board meeting, staff was directed to bring back information regarding the
Department’s Cal OES reimbursement funds.

The Department’s reserves provide essential flexibility to address budget shortfalls that may arise
this fiscal year or in the future. Revenues that exceed expenditures at the end of the fiscal year
are added to the unassigned fund balance, strengthening financial reserves. California Office of
Emergency Services (Cal OES) reimbursements have historically played a significant role in this
process.

As of June 30, 2024, the Department’s unassigned reserves totaled $3,602,880. With FY 2024-25
General Fund expenditures budgeted at $14,907,235, the Department’s reserves represent 24.2%
of expenditures, exceeding the established minimum reserve level of 10%.
The reserves are allocated to support critical one-time expenditures in FY 2024-25, including:

● Dispatch start-up costs for Marin County Fire: $481,594.

Item 7
Page 1 of 2

Page 229 of 230



● Acquisition of two command vehicles for the Fire Chief and Battalion Chief, as
previously approved by the Board: $276,000.

Additionally, several employees are on disability leave, which has placed significant strain on
maintaining minimum staffing levels and managing overtime costs. To address these challenges,
staff is closely monitoring overtime expenditures and staffing costs. If these costs exceed the
budgeted allocation, the Board may consider utilizing unassigned reserves to cover the overages
rather than seeking additional contributions from member agencies.

The reserve funds have historically provided critical financial flexibility, supporting operational
needs and balancing the budget. Limiting their use could impair the Department’s ability to
respond effectively to unanticipated challenges.

Furthermore, the 10% reserve policy requirement will grow as the Department’s budget expands
to accommodate increased staffing levels and operational needs. Rising expenditures will
necessitate higher reserve levels, underscoring the importance of preserving unrestricted
reserves.

Staff has reviewed the financial policies of other Marin County fire agencies and confirmed that
no other agency restricts the use of Cal OES reimbursements. Maintaining unrestricted
reimbursements aligns with industry best practices and ensures operational flexibility.

CONCLUSION
The Ross Valley Fire Department has maintained a prudent reserve level exceeding the 10%
minimum policy, with unassigned reserves at 24.2%. These reserves have been critical in funding
operations and balancing budgets, all while having minimal impacts on member agencies' FY
budgets that have already been adopted.

FISCAL IMPACT

There are no fiscal impacts to this report.

Item 7
Page 2 of 2

Page 230 of 230




